
 
 

 

 

 

 

August 16, 2022 
 

 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 

 

BOARD PACKET 
      

        

10:00 A.M. 

 

8631 BOND ROAD 

ELK GROVE, CA  95624 
 

 

 

 
 



SACRAMENTO/YOLO MOSQUITO 

& VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES REGULAR MEETING 
8631 Bond Road 

Elk Grove, CA  95624 

 

AGENDA 
August 16, 2022 

10:00 AM 
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disability Act, if you are a disabled person and you need a disability-related modification or 

accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the District office at (916) 685-1022 or (916) 685-5464 (fax). Requests 

must be made as early as possible, and at least one-full business day before the start of the meeting.  
Documents and materials relating to an open session agenda item that are provided to the SYMVCD Board less than 72 hours prior to 

a regular meeting will be available for public inspection and copying at 8631 Bond Road, Elk Grove, Ca 95624. The documents will 

also be available on the agency’s website at www.fightthebite.net. 
 

*Note: District Board Members, staff and the public will participate in this meeting via 

teleconference. In-person attendance at the District Offices will not be permitted, please 

refer to https://www.fightthebite.net/about/about-the-board/ for instructions on how to 

sign-in. 
 

 CALL TO ORDER: 

 Roll Call   

 Pledge of Allegiance 
 

1. Board Review and Consideration to Authorize the Board 

Meeting be Conducted by Teleconference 

 

2. Items for Approval by General Consent: 

a.  Minutes of the July 19, 2022 Board of Trustees Meeting 

b.  Expenditures for July 2022  

c.  Board Review and Consideration to Extend Temporary 

Work Assignments until no later than December 31, 2022 

 

3. Opportunity for Public Comment 
This item is reserved for members of the public who wish to speak on items not on the 

agenda 

 

4. Reports to the Board 

a. Manager’s Report 

b. Reports from District Departments 

 Lab/Surveillance 

 Ecological Management 

 Biological Control 

 Larval and Adult Control 



 Public Outreach 

 

5. Board Review and Approval of MOU changes between the 

District and Operating Engineers Local Union #3 

 

6. Status of West Nile Virus Activity and District Response  

 

7. Closed Session- Conference with Legal Counsel – Threatened 

or Anticipated Litigation (Gov. Code s. 54956.9 (d)(1), (d) (2)) – 

One (1) Matter – Contract Dispute with Complete Welders  

 

8. Closed Session-Conference with Labor Negotiators 

(Government Code Section 54957.6 – Unrepresented 

Employee: Assistant Manager) 

 

9. Board/Staff Reports and Requests 

 

10. Adjournment  



 

Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and Vector Control District 

 

  August 16, 2022 Board Meeting 

 
 

1. Board Review and Consideration to Authorize the Board Meeting 

be Conducted by Teleconference 
 

Staff Report: 

 

Consider finding by a majority vote under Gov. Code § 54953, subd. (e)(1)(B) that as a 

result of the COVID-19 emergency: (i) meeting in person would present imminent risks 

to the health or safety of attendees; and (ii) the meeting is authorized to be held by 

teleconference pursuant to Gov. Code, § 54953, subd. (e)(1)(C).  

 

In light of the Governor’s declaration that a state of emergency exists due to the 

incidence and spread of the novel coronavirus, and the pandemic caused by the resulting 

disease COVID-19, the Board should consider whether meeting in person would present 

imminent risks to the health or safety of meeting attendees.  

 

The Centers for Disease Control indicates that COVID-19 is a highly transmissible virus 

that is spread when an infected person breathes out droplets and very small particles that 

contain the virus, and such droplets and particles are breathed in by other people.
1
   

 

Conducting meetings by teleconference would directly reduce the risk of transmission 

among meeting attendees, including members of the public and agency staff, which has 

the ancillary effect of reducing risk of serious illness and death as well as reducing 

community spread of the virus. 

 

If the authorization to meet by teleconference is not approved by a majority vote, then the 

meeting will adjourn after this item and the remaining agenda items will be rescheduled 

to a future in-person meeting. 

 

This authorization will be in effect for 30 days from approval.   

 

Recommendation:  
Move that the board find that, as a result of the COVID-19 emergency, meeting in 

person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees, and the 

meeting should be held by teleconference as authorized by subdivision (e)(1)(C) of 

section 54943 of the Government Code. 

                                                 
1 www.cdc.gov/cornonavirus/2019-ncov/prevent-getting-sick/how-covid-spreads.html 



Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and Vector Control District 

 

  August 16, 2022 Board Meeting 

 
 

2. Items for Approval by General Consent:  

 
a. Minutes of the July 19, 2022 Board of Trustees Meeting; 

b. Expenditures for July 2022 

c. Board Review and Consideration to Extend Temporary Work Assignments 

until no later than December 31, 2022 

 

 

Recommendation:  

 

Approve the Items by General Consent 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 



Minutes of the July 19, 2022, SYMVCD Board of Trustees Meeting  

 

 

 

MINUTES OF THE July 19, 2022 
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE SACRAMENTO-

YOLO MOSQUITO & VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT 
 

 

Location: Virtual Meeting via Zoom 

Time: 10:00 a.m. 

 
Call to Order: The meeting was called to order by Board President Marcia Mooney at 10:01 
a.m. 

 
Trustees Present: 

 
Marcia Mooney President Galt 

Gar House Vice President Winters 

Sean Denny Secretary Woodland 

Christopher Barker  Davis 

Craig Burnett  Folsom 

Lyndon Hawkins  Elk Grove 

Jayna Karpinski-Costa  Citrus Heights 

Raymond LaTorre  Sacramento 

Bruce Eldridge  Yolo County 

Staci Gardiner  Isleton 

Charles Duty  Sacramento County 

Robert McGarvey  Rancho Cordova 

 

Trustees Darroch was absent. Trustee Eldridge arrived at 10:03am and Karpinski-Costa at 10:07am.  

 

Legal Counsel Present: 
 

Jennifer Buckman 
 

Staff Present: 
 

Gary Goodman Manager 

Samer Elkashef Assistant Manager 

Sarah Wheeler Laboratory Director  

Steve Ramos Program Coordinator 

Luz Robles Public Information Officer 

Kevin Valone Field Technician 
 

Roll Call 
This meeting was by video teleconference. Attendance was taken by Roll Call. All 
Trustees aside from Trustee Darroch  were in attendance and a quorum was present.  
 

Pledge of Allegiance 
All phones and electronic devices are requested to be silenced during the Pledge of 
Allegiance and for the duration of the meeting. 

 

 



Minutes of the July 19, 2022, SYMVCD Board of Trustees Meeting  

1. Items for Approval by General Consent 
 

Board President Marcia Mooney asked for Item 1a to be pulled out and voting on 
separately then Items 1b-1e. On a motion by Trustee Burnett and seconded by 
Trustee Denny, the Board voted to approve General Consent Item a. The vote was 
taken by roll call and the motion passed by the following vote: Ayes: 11, Noes: 0, 
Absent: 1, Abstain:1. On a motion by Trustee Burnett and seconded by Trustee 
Denny, the Board voted to approve General Consent Item b-e. The vote was taken by 
roll call and the motion passed by the following vote: Ayes: 12, Noes: 0, Absent: 1 

 
a. Minutes of the June 21, 2022 Board of Trustees Meeting 

b. Expenditures for June 2022 

c. District Investment Report for Period Ending December 31, 2021 

d. District Investment Report for Period Ending March 31, 2022 

e. Board Consideration of Including Merced MAD to the VDCI Contract for Aerial 

Services 

 

2. Opportunity for Public Comment 
 

This item is reserved for members of the public who wish to speak on items not on the 
agenda. 

 
Union President, Kevin Valone, gave a public comment on the state of bargaining 
including concerns over wages and vacation. Felix Huerta business representative for 
OE3, provided public comment on Unfair Labor Charges and the state of bargaining 
including medical payments and wages. 

 

3. Reports to the Board 
 

Manager’s Report: General Manager Gary Goodman gave an update on West Nile 
virus activity noting that this year’s activity does not match trends from previous 
years. He also mentioned that Aedes aegypti detections continue and that staff are 
busy inspecting and treating. The State Water Resources Control Board is in the 
process of adding a new active ingredient to the Vector Control NPDES permit. 
AMCA is still trying to secure federal funding through the Department of Health and 
Human Services, the Department of Agriculture and the Department of the Interior to 
build a better model for aerial adulticiding. The District has collaborators from the Pan 
African Mosquito Control Association visiting the District to learn about the 
infrastructure of vector control in California. 
 
Reports from District Departments: Written reports were provided in the Board 
packet from each department. Department supervisors gave an oral presentation and 
were available to answer any questions. 

 
Lab/Surveillance:  Laboratory Director, Sarah Wheeler provided an oral report in addition 
to her written report. Sarah noted that Culex tarsalis areas are rising and above the mean 
abundance. Culex pipiens numbers are below normal but expected to rise. The lab has 
detected 7 dead birds that are positive for WNV at the time of writing with a few more 
birds testing positive since then. Mosquito sample WNV positives are lower than the 
previous season at this point. Sarah gave an overview of mosquito production from the 
rice field habitat and an update on Aedes aegypti surveillance efforts. 

 

Ecological Management: Ecological Management Supervisor, Marty Scholl, provided 

a written report.  
 



Minutes of the July 19, 2022, SYMVCD Board of Trustees Meeting  

Biological Control: Fisheries Supervisor, Tony Hedley provided an oral report in addition 
to his written report. Tony gave an overview on how the reduction in rice acreage has 
changed how his department allocates mosquitofish. The District has deployed 1200lbs 
of mosquitofish to date this season. 
 
Larval and Adult Control: Program Coordinator Steve Ramos provided an oral report in 
addition to his written report. Steve highlighted that Field Technicians have been busy in 
their zones with WNV responses. A big source of concern is enhanced irrigations in 
pasture land. Technicians have been busy following these irrigations to make sure Aedes 
breeding is not followed by Culex breeding. Steve then gave an update on the aerial 
larviciding and adulticiding responses. The update closed information on Aedes aegypti 
responses and District trials. 
 
Public Outreach:  Public Information Officer, Luz Maria Robles provided an oral report in 
addition to her written report. Luz gave the Board an update on outreach efforts including 
a recent ride-along that the Sacramento Bee participated in with Control Operations 
looking at Aedes aegypti breeding. Luz gave an update on the events that the District has 
participated in this season. The District’s advertising campaign is in full swing and 
repellent has been ordered and being distributed to the public. 

 
 

4. Closed Session- Provide Instruction to Designated Labor Representatives  
(Gov. Code s. 54957.6-Labor Negotiations) Agency Designated 
Representatives : [Gary Goodman, Samer Elkashef, Kim Bogard]  Employee 
Organization: [Operating Engineers Local Union #3] 

 
The Board went into Closed Session at 10:58am. The Board came out of closed session 
at 11:39am. The Board reported that they gave direction to their designated 
representatives. 
 

5. Board Review and Approval of District Budget for 2022-2023 
General Manager Gary Goodman went over the modifications that have been made to 
the draft budget that was presented to the Board in June and answered questions 
from the Board. A motion to pass the 2022-2023 Budget was made by Trustee 
Karpinski-Costa and seconded by Trustee Denny. The vote was taken by roll call and 
the motion passed by the following vote: Ayes: 12, Noes: 0, Absent: 1. Trustee 
Eldridge voted by phone and the rest of the Board and District Counsel recognized his 
voice. 
 
 

6. Board Authorization to Pay CalPers Unfunded Liability in the Amount of $2,774,860 
A motion was made by Trustee Denny and seconded by Trustee Gardiner to pass this 
item. The vote was taken by roll call and the motion passed by the following vote: 
Ayes: 12, Noes: 0, Absent: 1. 
 
 

7. Board Authorization to Pay 2022/2023 Annual Premium Invoice of $467,682 for 
Coverage through the Vector Control Joint Powers Agency 
District Manager Gary Goodman presented this item. A motion was made by Trustee 
Burnett and seconded by Trustee Denny to pass this item. The vote was taken by roll 
call and the motion passed by the following vote: Ayes: 12, Noes: 0, Absent: 1. 
 
 
 
 



Minutes of the July 19, 2022, SYMVCD Board of Trustees Meeting  

8. BOARD/STAFF REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 
District Manager Gary Goodman highlighted the progress being made in re-staffing the 
front office, including the Administrative Manager and the Senior Administrative Assistant. 
The recruitment for the Assistant Manager will be starting shortly. The Board discussed 
revisiting getting a bank loan to help pay off the CalPERS Unfunded Liability. The Board 
confirmed that the next Board meeting would be held on Tuesday, August 16th at 10am 
via Zoom. 

 
9. ADJOURNMENT 

 
The meeting adjourned at 12:03pm 

 

 
I certify that the above minutes substantially reflect the general business and actions taken 
by the Board of Trustees at the July 19, 2022, meeting. 

 
 

Gary Goodman, Manager 

 
 

Approved as written, and/or corrected, by the Board of Trustees at the August 16th, 2022, 
meeting. 

 
 

 
Sean Denny, Board Secretary 









1Months Ended Annual

July 31 2022 Budget Unused

Revenue    

     REVENUE 0.00 0.00 0.00 

TOTAL Revenue 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Expenditures    

     SALARIES/BENEFITS/WC    

          SALARIES/BENEFITS/WC 4,228,574.95 10,114,835.00 5,886,260.05 

     TOTAL Salaries 4,228,574.95 10,114,835.00 5,886,260.05 

     OPERATIONAL    

          LIABILITY INSURANCE 240,624.00 240,624.00 0.00 

          AUDITING/FISCAL 0.00 18,000.00 18,000.00 

          COMMUNICATIONS 9,091.96 99,000.00 89,908.04 

          PUBLIC INFORMATION 74,850.39 595,500.00 520,649.61 

          STRUCTURE & GROUNDS 677.86 69,000.00 68,322.14 

          MEMBER/TRAINING 24,405.00 148,000.00 123,595.00 

          DISTRICT OFFICE EXPENSES 2,298.77 22,500.00 20,201.23 

          PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 37,019.00 297,000.00 259,981.00 

          MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 6,918.36 22,750.00 15,831.64 

          RENTS & LEASES - Admin 504.59 11,550.00 11,045.41 

          SAFETY PROGRAM 170.00 5,000.00 4,830.00 

          UTILITIES 3,054.74 120,000.00 116,945.26 

          AIRCRAFT SERVICES 52,086.89 1,074,000.00 1,021,913.11 

          ECOLOGICAL MANAGEMENT 28.62 14,700.00 14,671.38 

          MICROBIAL 309,747.24 1,200,000.00 890,252.76 

          INSECT GROWTH REGULATOR 79,546.23 1,133,000.00 1,053,453.77 

          INSECTICIDES 0.00 700,000.00 700,000.00 

          FISHERIES 932.75 36,000.00 35,067.25 

          GEOGRAPHIC INFO SYSTEMS 0.00 9,000.00 9,000.00 

          INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 2,856.80 80,000.00 77,143.20 

          CONTROL OPERATIONS 1,133.71 66,000.00 64,866.29 

          VEHICLE PARTS/LABOR 7,547.65 121,000.00 113,452.35 

          LAB SERVICES 26,106.19 235,300.00 209,193.81 

          GAS & PETROLEUM 19,451.84 300,000.00 280,548.16 

     TOTAL Total Operational 899,052.59 6,617,924.00 5,718,871.41 

Sacramento/Yolo M.V.C.D.

STATEMENT OF OPERATION





Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and Vector Control District 

 

  August 16, 2022 Board Meeting 

 
 

2. Items for Approval by General Consent:  

 
c. Board Review and Consideration to Extend Temporary Work Assignments 

until no later than December 31, 2022 

 

Staff Report 

 

The District is currently recruiting for the Assistant Manager position.   Tony Hedley and 

Steve Ramos, are both willing to help take over some of the duties and responsibilities 

associated with the role as we work through the recruitment process.     The temporary 

assignment would hopefully last no longer than the end of the year and ideally would overlap 

with the upcoming selection to help the transition.   If the position is filled sooner, then we 

would give Tony and Steve a 30 day notice as they help the Manager work with the new 

candidate.    

 

Section 8.01 of the Personnel Manual states, The Manager may temporarily, for up to thirty 

(30) days, assign an employee to perform work normally performed by an employee at a 

different level of salary.  

 

Recommendation:  

 

Approve the Extension of Temporary Work Assignments until no later than December 

31
st
, 2022.   

 

 

 
 

 

 

 



Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and Vector Control District 

 

  August 16, 2022 Board Meeting 
 

 

4. Reports to the Board 

a. Manager’s Report 

b. Reports from District Departments 

 Lab/Surveillance (Sarah Wheeler) 

 Ecological Management (Marty Scholl) 

 Biological Control (Tony Hedley) 

 Larval and Adult Control (Steve Ramos) 

 Public Outreach (Luz Maria Robles) 

  

a.   Manager’s Report 

 
The District’s West Nile season is picking up, however still below our average 

numbers of virus activity.   We continue to follow the Districts Mosquito Borne 

Disease Management Plan with enhanced surveillance and control efforts in 

response to positive dead birds or positive mosquito collections.   

 

COVID-19 restrictions continue to change and everyone is doing their best to 

follow the guidelines to keep ourselves, our families, and our colleagues safe.    

 

The District audit is scheduled to be done remotely in late September.      

 

The SWRCB has agreed to add products to our NPDES permit and they are in the 

public comment period now.    

 

AMCA continues to push for federal funding to support a better aerial application 

model for public health.    The Senate appropriations committee released their 

FY23 spending bills and the AMCA language is included.   We will continue to 

provide outreach to our legislators to secure its passage.   

 

 

b. Reports from District Departments 

 Lab/Surveillance (Sarah Wheeler) 

 Ecological Management (Marty Scholl) 

 Biological Control (Tony Hedley) 

 Larval and Adult Control (Steve Ramos) 

 Public Outreach (Luz Maria Robles) 



LABORATORY 

Monthly Report for August 2022 Board Meeting  

 

Insectary: 

  
Species Name Origin Resistance Status 

Culex tarsalis KNWR Kern National Wildlife Refuge (2009) susceptible 

Culex quinquefasciatus CQ1 Merced, CA (1950s) susceptible 

Culex pipiens WCP Woodland, CA (2017) resistant: pyrethrins/pyrethroids, 

methoprene, and spinosad 

Culex tarsalis VFCT Vic Fazio Yolo Wildlife Area (2020) resistant: pyrethrins/pyrethroids 

Culex pipiens  South Sacramento (2021) status under investigation 

Aedes sierrensis  Sonoma County (2016) susceptible 

   

 
Surveillance: 

 

Weekly mosquito collections - The graphs below show overall Culex tarsalis and Culex pipiens 

abundance from constant operation gravid traps and locker traps placed in permanent locations 

throughout Sacramento and Yolo Counties.  

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

Weekly Culex tarsalis abundance traps in locker and gravid traps 

 



  
 

 

 

Encephalitis virus surveillance (EVS) – The following graphs show the number of Culex 

tarsalis and Culex pipiens that were collected in CO2-baited EVS traps run in established and 

West Nile virus response locations for a single night, then tested for West Nile virus.  

 

 
Culex tarsalis in CO2 traps  

 

 

 

 

Weekly Culex pipiens abundance traps in locker and gravid traps 

 



 

 

 

  
Culex pipiens in CO2 traps  

 

West Nile virus (WNV) testing – As of 8/4/2022, 3,182 mosquito pools of Culex tarsalis and 

Culex pipiens were tested for WNV in 2022, 23 pools have tested positive for WNV.    

 

Dead birds – Overall, 237 dead birds have been collected and tested. In total we have detected 

24 WNV-positive dead birds.  

 

 
Detections of WNV positive mosquito pools and dead birds.  



 

 

Sentinel chickens – Chickens are tested every other week for antibodies against WNV. No 

WNV-positive chickens have been detected thus far this year.   

 

Human disease response surveillance – Two cases of dengue fever and one case of malaria 

were reported to the District. No Aedes aegypti or Anopheles freeborni were detected in the case 

vicinity, these investigations are now complete. A human case of West Nile virus was reported in 

Woodland. West Nile virus was detected in mosquito pools in Woodland, control interventions 

for larval and adult mosquitoes are underway and will continue until West Nile virus activity 

abates.   

 

BG Counter traps – Counter traps are deployed in rice growing areas including: Natomas, Vic 

Fazio Wildlife Refuge, Conaway Ranch, and District 108. Theses traps sense the size of objects 

collected by the trap and classify them as smaller than a mosquito, mosquito-sized, and larger 

than a mosquito. Mosquito count data is transmitted via cellular connection to an online platform 

where District employees can check count data in real time whenever needed. BG Counter traps 

predominately collect Culex tarsalis and to a lesser extent Anopheles freeborni.   

 

Aedes aegypti trapping effort in Sacramento and Yolo Counties - Biogents (BG) Sentinel 

traps are the primary trap type used for Aedes aegypti surveillance. These traps are run 

continuously within the cities where Aedes aegypti populations have established including: Elk 

Grove, Winters, and Sacramento (Arden/Arcade, Rosemont, and Elder Creek communities). BG 

traps are also set for a single night to detect new infestations and further define current 

infestations. The following table shows the cumulative 2022 BG trapping effort and Aedes 

aegypti detections.  

 

 
 

 

City County Single night

Constant 

operation

Carmichael Sacramento 11 0

Citrus Heights Sacramento 25 0

Davis Yolo 57 0

Elk Grove Sacramento 152 937 44

Fair Oaks Sacramento 76 0

Folsom Sacramento 68 0

Galt Yolo 31 0

Orangevale Sacramento 52 0 1

Rancho Murieta Sacramento 50 0

Sacramento Sacramento 473 1169 124

Sloughhouse Sacramento 1 0

West Sacramento Yolo 30 0

Wilton Sacramento 1 0

Winters Yolo 203 275 107

Woodland Yolo 48 0

Total trap nights Total          

Aedes aegypti 

collected



The California Arbovirus Surveillance Bulletin #18 Week 31 Friday, August 5, 2022  

 

 
 

 



 1

ECOLOGICAL MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT 

Monthly Report for the August 2022 Board Meeting                                                                  
 

Stormwater / Wetland Program 

 

CA Department of Water Resources (DWR), Lower Yolo Ranch: DWR Staff contacted the District to 

inquire about treating mosquitoes on the restored tidal fresh water wetland on their Lower Yolo Ranch 

located near the Southern end of the Yolo Bypass. Staff will continue to monitor potential impounded 

water caused by recent high tides. 

  

Sacramento County, Cordova Creek: Sacramento County Department of Parks and Recreation is 

working with the District to coordinate cleaning of large scale beaver dams and installing a pipe to 

help maintain creek flows on the restored section of Cordova Creek within the City of Rancho 

Cordova. 

 

Pool Program 

 

Staff served and executed the Inspection and Abatement Warrant issued from the Sacramento County 

Superior Court Judge on thirteen individual properties. All properties were served with assistance from 

individual Code and Law Enforcement Officers as appropriate. The Warrant was returned before the 

return date back to the Sacramento County Courthouse for filing. 

 

Staff are currently working through an additional list of unmaintained backyard pools that may require 

an additional warrant to gain access. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Cemetery Program 

 

Staff have been inspecting and treating local cemetery around the District. The Department is 

experimenting with using single serve water soluble packets of water absorbing crystals to expedite the 

inspection and treatment process. 

 



 2

 

 

 

 

Agricultural Program 

 

Staff continue work on agricultural drainage projects around the greater Sacramento area utilizing 

District equipment. These projects are designed to improve technician access as well as improve the 

drainage facilities to help reduce mosquito breeding. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Fall Flooding 

 

Staff have begun contacting wetland owners and managers to coordinate the start of fall habitat 

flooding. Staff will also be attending the annual Lower Yolo Duck Club flood-up meeting later this 

month to discuss schedules and routine ditch and wetland maintenance. Potential mosquito control 

treatment costs will be provided to each landowner prior to flood-up based upon the District’s Cost 

Share schedule. 

 

 Flooding started on or 

after date 

Percent of treatment costs to be paid by 

landowner through Oct 7 

Summer -September 17         100%  

Sept 17 50% 

Sept 24 25% 

Oct 1 none 



 

BIOLOGICAL CONTROL 

Monthly Report for August 2022 Board Meeting   

 

The primary focus in the month of July is to stock rice fields as efficiently as possible. The main 

targets are the rice fields nearest dense populations while examining current and  historic larval 

counts. Fields with higher larval densities and close to populated areas will get stocked first then 

we will work away to more distant fields. With fewer rice fields overall this due to lack of water, 

we are able to stock the rice fields at higher rates to control mosquito larva more effectively. The 

daily fish stocking process involves preparing maps using the guidelines stated previously 

followed by transporting and planting mosquitofish in the designated fields. After completing 

this process the fisheries crew returns to Bond road facility to begin harvesting more 

mosquitofish for the next day's fish stocking. This process is repeated everyday for the six week 

window of rice field stocking which typically runs from the end of June to the beginning of 

August. The Fisheries Department continues with many projects including monitoring dissolved 

oxygen levels, crayfish trapping and testing ideal stocking rates for rice fields. Daily activities 

such as tank cleaning, water quality monitoring, setting out aerators and pumps were also 

performed to maintain the high quality of our fish population.  

Log of Treatment Applied for July 

Material  AMT  Area Treated                Treatments 

Mosquitofish          1,936.61 lbs.     8,448.70 Acres                           396 

 

Running total of Mosquitofish usage for the year 2022 

Material  AMT  Area Treated            Treatments 

Mosquitofish         2,188.75 lbs.      9,604.64 Acres                      2,436 

Fisheries Budget 

Total    Spent  Remaining   % Spent 

36,000.00             5,650.44    30,349.56        16%     

        

The picture on the left shows 2021Natomas rice fields Stocked with fish( blue dots), green dots 

ready for fish. On the right is 2022 Natomas rice where the red dots indicate fallow rice fields. 

With water availability low throughout the valley, there were approximately 17,225 acres planted 

this year.  

  



 

 

 

CONTROL OPERATIONS 

Monthly Report for August 2022 Board Meeting 

 

 

Culex and West Nile Virus (WNv) Control 

 

WNv response for July was moderate, with a total of 13 ground treatment responses for the 

District. Abundance numbers are also down in rice growing areas compared to last year which is 

likely the result of a combination of less rice fields planted which allows for more larvicide 

treatments in rice fields. Field technicians have also been responding to pasture irrigations which 

are being performed sporadically as opposed to the usual irrigation cycles seen in the past as 

water is less available this year.     

  

Aerial Applications 

 

Rice treatments are being performed on a schedule of approximately every 10 days for this 

season. This scheduled treatment strategy began in July and will continue until the end of August 

where traditional dipping and treatments will resume come September. Adulticide treatments 

continue to be performed in areas such as District 108, Conaway, Natomas and Davis rice 

growing areas.    

   

Invasive Aedes Control 

   

WALS treatments have been performed in the Winters and Rosemont areas for Aedes aegypti 

control. The treatments are being performed with an adulticide application every other scheduled 

WALS application. In July the District treated over 2,000 acres utilizing WALs applications in 

both target areas combined. Continued trapping for Aedes aegypti will continue in the targeted 

areas as well as other areas around the District.   

  

District Trials 

 

District trials are ongoing with evaluations of the organic approved adulticide of Merus 3.0 via 

aerial application. Efficacy testing on our Pyrethrin with PBO adulticide was performed in July 

resulting in a 96% mortality in our wild population. Similar efficacy tests will be performed in 

August while applying Naled tested against susceptible and wild populations. The Districts 

spinosad trials in basins and yard drains are ongoing.  

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
District Biologist Mario Canto performing weather readings during the recent aerial efficacy test 

Temperature, wind and humidity readings are taken at 5 and 30 feet   

 

 

 
 



 

 

  Larvicide Applications thru July 31
st
 

  

 2022 2021 

Locations/Roles Treatments Acres Treatments Acres 

Sacramento County  4,753 6,553 4,658 7,762 

Sac County Aerial    18 Orders 10,672  21 Orders 12,074 

Sac County Drone Treatments 22 orders  785 8 orders  888 

Yolo County 860 2,518 980                    4,379 

Yolo County Aerial  22 Orders 36,231 36 Orders 62,204 

Yolo County Drone 

Treatments                         9 Orders  704 22 Orders 1,717 

CB Treated  61,929 --                        115,334             -- 

CB Inspected -not treated  82,082 -- 110,169 -- 

 

 

Aerial Adulticide Summary thru July 31
st 

 

 2022 2021 

County # Applications Acres # Applications Acres 

Sacramento Ag 7 49,280 8 56,205 

Sacramento Urban 0 0 0 0 

Yolo Ag 17 98,240 17 149,791 

Yolo Urban 0 0 0 0 

                                                                                                                                                                                                     

 

Adulticide Summary through July 31
st
, 2022                           compared to: 2021 

  

Contract Acres (our portion) =  530,000      530,000 

Acres used =   147,520       205,996 

Acres remaining =                                                                 (382,480)     (324,004)            

% Acres used  =         27%           38% 

% Acres remaining =        73%           62% 

 

San Joaquin County MVCD has used 56,309 acres of their 190,000 acre contract commitment. 

Placer MVCD has used 51,540 acres of their 100,000 acre commitment. 

Turlock MAD has used 24,000 acres of their 180,000 acre commitment. 

 



 1

 

PUBLIC INFORMATION AND EDUCATION 

Monthly Report for August Board Meeting 

 

 

 

National Night Out Repellent and Materials Distribution: 

National Night Out was August 2
nd

 and in support the District promoted the availability of free 

repellent on Nextdoor and Facebook. The City of Sacramento Neighborhood Services division 

which supports the various council districts picked up repellent to disseminate at the several 

events that were hosted throughout the city. In addition, a few other neighborhood associations 

such as Wisteria Place, Southland Neighborhood Association and Heritage Park also picked up 

repellent for their events.  

 

Events: 

In addition to National Night Out, August is a busy event month and we will participate in a total 

of four community events that include five days at the Yolo County Fair in Woodland, the Elk 

Grove Multicultural Festival, Rhythm by the River in West Sacramento and earlier this month 

we were excited to be back at the UC Davis Master Gardner Harvest Day. This event is all about 

gardening and provides educational talks on composting, herbs, tree pruning, use of green waste 

containers and many other relevant gardening tips. The event was a huge success as we were 

able to provide in depth information about invasive mosquitoes to a captive audience that 

understands the scope of the problem in the community. There were many other community 

organizations in attendance, the repellent wipes and information were well received and overall it 

was a fabulous event! 

 

Media Coverage: 

In July we received a media inquiry from the Sacramento Bee to do a “ride along” with one of 

our field technicians because they were interested in a story on invasive mosquitoes. We set up a 

meeting at an Elk Grove home that had many mosquito breeding sites in the backyard. They 

interviewed our staff, the resident, took photos and a video. The story was published recently and 

the result was a great in depth piece that highlighted invasive mosquitoes as a rising challenge in 

the region. The story was on the front page of the Sacramento Bee and was also included in their 

digital version. 

 

In addition, as a result of the first human case of West Nile virus in Yolo County as well as the 

detection of invasive mosquitoes in neighboring counties, we received some interest from local 

media stations that provided ongoing coverage.  

 

World Mosquito Day 

To commemorate World Mosquito Day on August 20
th

 the MVCAC Public Relations Committee 

put together a video and a social media calendar with info graphics in both English and Spanish. 

All materials will be disseminated to media outlets and other districts throughout the state so we 

can all have a unified message.  

 

 

 



 2

Advertising  

The advertising campaign continues to be in full swing and our Fight the Bite messages are 

airing consistently across radio and television stations. The media schedule is in flights so that 

our messages are being rotated across stations and this ensures a constant presence at all times 

throughout the media market. In additional to these commercials we also have billboards and 

digital ads. 

 

Social Media 

Our social media efforts continue and content is focused on invasive mosquitoes, West Nile virus 

activity, reporting dead birds, promotion of District services, signing up for spraying 

notifications and general mosquito prevention messages. We also have targeted and promoted 

posts specific to invasive mosquitoes in Winters and Arden-Arcade.  

 

Government affairs: 

As part of our ongoing detection of invasive mosquitoes as well as WNV activity, we have been 

keeping local elected officials informed by sending them regular email updates with our findings 

and response activities.  

 



 

Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and Vector Control District 

 

  August 16, 2022 Board Meeting 

 
 

5. Board Review and Approval of MOU changes between the 

District and Operating Engineers Local Union #3 

 
Staff Report: 

 
The MOU with the Operating Engineers Local Union #3 (OE3) expired on June 30, 2022.   

The District has been meeting with OE3 on modifications to the expired MOU and we 

have reached a tentative agreement (attached) on the issues of  

 Union Security 

 Disciplinary Action and Dismissal 

 Health and Welfare 

 Duration 

 CPI Increase 

 

The changes are underlined in the attached documents and we will incorporate them into 

a revised MOU when fully ratified.    

 

Recommendation:  

Approve the tentative agreements and instruct the Manager to incorporate them 

into a revised MOU between the District and Operating Engineers Local Union #3 

 

 

 

 

 
 





















 

Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and Vector Control District 

 

  August 16, 2022 Board Meeting 

 
 

6. Status of West Nile Virus Activity and District Response  
 

Staff Report: 

The District continues to follow the Mosquito and Mosquito Borne Disease Management 

Plan which highlights the steps that personnel take in responding to high abundance or 

infections in the mosquito population.  When a dead bird or mosquito is found to have 

been infected with West Nile virus, lab personnel enhance surveillance efforts around the 

location to determine the potential spread of the detection.  Control operation personnel 

then conduct a radius of both larval and adult sources to help reduce the number of 

mosquitoes in the area and to reduce the risk of transmission to the population.  The 

District then continues to monitor the area to determine the geographic extent of the 

infection and to see if the number of infections decreases from the effort of the control 

personnel.  If infections persist in the area, then more aggressive measures are 

considered.  In addition to the traditional surveillance tools we’ve used in previous years, 

the District is in the process of using sugar baits to enhance our program. 

 

As was the case last year, the District has experienced a mild WNV year compared to 

previous years with limited ground based adulticide treatments needed in urban/suburban 

areas.  To date, no aerial adulticiding has been required over congested areas to quickly 

interrupt the transmission cycle of WNV. The District has maintained its aerial adulticide 

program over rice growing and agricultural areas to reduce populations and to prevent 

migration from these areas to the population centers of the District.   

 

Statewide, WNV activity has shown an increase compared to last year.  There are 

approximately 200 less mosquito pool positives this year compared to last year with the 

highest activity in 2022 being in Tulare (319), Fresno (163) and Los Angeles (98) 

counties. An additional six counties have reported 20 to 80 positive pools. The number of 

WNV positive dead birds is also down this year with 60 dead birds testing positive so far 

this year which is a decrease from the 109 positive birds in 2021. This year 17 chickens 

have seroconverted which is higher than the 10 that seroconverted by the same time last 

year. 

 

State of California  

2021 & 2022 YTD West Nile Virus Comparisons-Thru 08/5/2022 

  2021 2022 

Total # Dead Bird Reports  3,538 3,066 

# Positive Counties 25 23 

# Human Cases 8 7 

# Positive Dead Birds / # Tested 109/1,069 60/817 

# Positive Mosquito Pools / # Tested 770/19,719 965/18,736 

# Seroconversions / # Tested 10/3,258 17/2,815 



 

 

The charts below highlight the amount of West Nile virus activity that the District has 

recorded year to date for 2022 and annual totals compared to the previous twelve years. 
 

 

 
 

*Through August 5, 2022 

 

 

 

Recommendation: 
Information Only     







 

Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and Vector Control District 

 

  August 16, 2022 Board Meeting 

 

 

7. Closed Session- Conference with Legal Counsel – Threatened or 

Anticipated Litigation (Gov. Code s. 54956.9 (d)(1), (d) (2)) – One 

(1) Matter – Contract Dispute with Complete Welders 

 
 



 

Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and Vector Control District 

 

  August 16, 2022 Board Meeting 

 

 

8. Closed Session – Conference with Labor Negotiators 

(Government Code Section 54957.6 – Unrepresented Employee: 

Assistant Manager)  

 

 
 


	1 - Board Packet Cover August 2022.pdf (p.1)
	BOARD AGENDA AUGUST 2022.pdf (p.2-3)
	BOARD ITEM 1 AUGUST 2022.pdf (p.4)
	BOARD ITEM 2 AUGUST 2022.pdf (p.5)
	BOARD ITEM 2A AUGUST 2022.pdf (p.6-9)
	BOARD ITEM 2B AUGUST 2022.pdf (p.10-12)
	BOARD ITEM 2B1 AUGUST 2022.pdf (p.13-14)
	BOARD ITEM 2C AUGUST 2022.pdf (p.15)
	BOARD ITEM 4 AUGUST 2022.pdf (p.16)
	BOARD ITEM 4B1.pdf (p.17-21)
	BOARD ITEM 4B2.pdf (p.22-23)
	BOARD ITEM 4B3.pdf (p.24)
	BOARD ITEM 4B4.pdf (p.25-27)
	BOARD ITEM 4B5.pdf (p.28-29)
	BOARD ITEM 5 AUGUST 2022.pdf (p.30)
	BOARD ITEM 5A AUGUST 2022.pdf (p.31-34)
	BOARD ITEM 5B AUGUST 2022.pdf (p.35-37)
	BOARD ITEM 5C AUGUST 2022.pdf (p.38-39)
	BOARD ITEM 6 AUGUST 2022.pdf (p.40-41)
	BOARD ITEM 6A AUGUST 2022.pdf (p.42-43)
	BOARD ITEM 7 AUGUST 2022.pdf (p.44)
	BOARD ITEM 8 AUGUST 2022.pdf (p.45)

